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Amendment 4
Constellation Space Suit System (CSSS)


The purpose of amendment 4 is to revise Sections A-I, Section L Parts I and II, Section L Part III and post questions and answers 58 through 68.

For Sections A-I, Clauses B.3, B.6, and B.8 are amended to reflect that the Government may choose to issue Delivery Orders under CLIN 8 as either firm fixed-price or cost reimbursable.  
For Section L, Parts I and II, Provisions L.5 and L.15 are amended to add the proper references and instructions to the Government Property Management Plan.  The Government Property Management Plan is to be included as Part 6 of the Appendix to the Volume III (Management Volume).  

A correction was made on the start date for CLIN 3 in Section L Part III, paragraph 4.0.
Constellation Space Suit System

Official Questions and Answers Nos. 58-65

Question 58:  Instructions for the Overhead template (OHT) and G&A template (GAT) state "This template is required of the Prime Offeror, Major Sub...only if a FPRA/FPRP is not utilized for pricing the Basic Period, the Option Period 1, and the Option Period 2 effort."  

FPRAs are usually valid for X number of years and are updated / negotiated annually.  We currently are utilizing an FPRA valid for the next three (3) years, our FPRA is the basis for our out year FPR projections.  What is our requirement to completing the aforementioned templates?  

Answer:  Offerors shall provide the basis for all out year rates not covered by the FPRA in their proposal.  This requirement can be done in narrative form or the OHT and GAT may be used.  However in this situation, these templates are not required as long as the basis for the out year rates are the FRPA rates.  
Question 59: This question is to recommend that the OPM requirement to be self-calculating be withdrawn.   Electronic and hard copy cost and fee summaries following the format specified in Table 15-2 of FAR 15.408 from our government approved pricing system (OPM) should suffice as they did on another recent NASA procurement (see NASA RFP NNM07190940R ).  

The CSSS RFP requires we propose utilizing our approved estimating, pricing, and accounting systems and submitting proposals that allow for DCAA verification of our FPRA.  A self-calculating CSSS OPM will not match our government approved OPM due to monthly versus annual calculations and will not allow for DCAA FPRA verification absent much detailed explanation.  Our proposal will include hard copy cost and fee summaries from our government approved OPM for audit.  A self calculating CSSS OPM will require us to provide three (3) different cost and fee reports.  The cost differences are very, very, minor.  

If the CSSS OPM is still to be self-calculating, please explain its value add over the EPM.  If our fiscal year was the same as the contract year than our EPM and the CSSS OPM would be identical.  

The paragraphs below were taken from the NASA IUA RFP  NNM07190940R Volume III - Cost Factor ,1.  Introduction, paragraphs i and j  and Section 9, where a single submission (EPM) was determined adequate (absent an government approved OPM) to meet the requirement and the OPM is no longer required to be self calculating.  

Can the below requirement be included in the CSSS RFP, as the CSSS OPM is very costly to prepare.  Thank you for your consideration .  

i.
Offerors shall develop their pricing estimates using their established estimating systems detailing the cost elements in their OPMs.  

j.
 ..If an Offeror or subcontractor does not have a Government-approved OPM, that entity may use the EPM as its OPM.  In this case, a single submission would meet the requirement for both EPM and OPM.  

Cost Volume Part 3, Section 9   Offeror s Pricing Model (OPM) The Offeror s Pricing Model (OPM) shall be time-phased by Offeror fiscal year, and separated by CLIN.  Additionally, it should follow the format specified in Table 15-2 of FAR 15.408.  Offerors may incorporate as many of the EPM templates as necessary and/or desired.  Unlike the EPM, the OPM is not required to be self-calculating.  

Answer:  NASA has considered your request and the requirement for the OPM to be self calculating will not be withdrawn.  The OPM provides NASA insight into the offeror's estimating approach.  NASA realizes that the two models (EPM & OPM) may differ in their output either due to year used (fiscal or contractor year) or rounding; however, each model provides valuable insight into the offeror’s cost structure and estimates.  A non-calculating OPM would be useless to NASA; therefore, the requirement will not be changed.   
Question 60:  REF Attachment J-2, Submissions Events table, page 1, DRD CSSS-B-0005, Government Property Management Plan.  This table indicates the initial submittal of this document is due with the proposal; however, Section L was not updated to indicate which volume should include this document.  Please clarify. 

Answer:  Attachment J-2 is correct.  Section L, Parts I and II, Provision L.15 has been updated to add DRD CSSS-B-005 as Part 6 of the Appendix to the Management Volume.
Question 61:  REF Attachment J-2, Submissions Events table, page 9, DRD CSSS-T-001, Contractor Systems Engineering Management Plan.  This table indicates the initial submittal is with the proposal and 60 days after ATP.  Since Section L requires submittal with the proposal, is the initial submittal 60 days after ATP in error? 

Answer:  Attachment J-2, Submissions Events table, page 9, should indicate that the initial submittal of DRD CSSS-T-001, Contractor Systems Engineering Management Plan is with the proposal and that an update is required 60 days after ATP.  This table will be updated in an upcoming RFP amendment.  
Question 62:  In section L Part III Cost volume Instructions for Cost Volume page 27 of 55 "Item 2. Option Period 2 - Production Effort (PE) NTE IDIQ Templates" and Item a. Cost Summary Template (CST-OP2PE) specifies that the PE is IDIQ and consists of Cost Plus Award Fee (CPAF) or Firm Fixed Price (FFP) delivery orders.  The cost summary template requests a NTE price, but there is only one line to report this information.  Should we use Cost Plus Award Fee pricing or Firm Fixed Price pricing, or should there be a line item for CPAF and FFP?

Answer:  In accordance with Section B, Clause B.8 (as updated in RFP Amendment 4), Offerors are reminded that NASA may issue delivery orders as either FFP or CPAF.  Offerors shall take this fact into consideration in proposing an NTE that is applicable for both FFP and CPAF delivery orders.  Offerors shall propose in accordance with the RFP instructions. 

Question 63:  On page 1 of Section L, Part III, Volume IV: Cost Volume, it states "...while CLIN 3 is two years (24 months), with a start date of October 1, 2013 and an end date of September 30, 2014".  The 24 months is inconsistent with the start and end date.

Answer:  This inconsistency has been corrected with an updated version of Section L, Part III Paragraph 4.0 posted with Amendment 4 of the RFP. 

Question 64:  NASA has identified two types of displays: Cuff and Helmet-Mounted Display (HMD).  Is it the intent to provide both or consider comparing them?

Answer:  The cuff checklist and HMD are options that have been considered in trade studies and architecture references.  Offerors should propose to the requirements specified in the RFP.

Question 65:  Attachment J-16, Table 3 Suit Element Basic Period and Option 2 for FY2010, Quarter 2 lists 3 1-g and 1 Neutral Buoyancy Development Units for all of the Pressure Garment Subsystem Assemblies except for the Helmet Subassembly which only lists 3 1-g Development Units.  Should there also be a Neutral Buoyancy Development Unit listed for the Helmet Subassembly?

Answer:  Yes, but NASA does not intend to further update RFP Attachment J-16. Offerors are reminded that per Section L, Part II Provision L.15.k.G.4, the RFP’s Attachment J-16 is a sample DIL for the suit element.  Offerors are to propose a DIL for the suit element that meets the requirements specified in the RFP.  

Question 66:  Section L, subsection F, paragraph 2 states that "The Offeror shall submit one "Past Performance Interview/Questionnaire Form", to customer references, for up to ten of the Offeror's most relevant contracts..."  In cases where the contract work was performed for our CSSS competitor, is it permissible to send the questionnaire directly to the NASA reference for the overall prime contract rather than the competitor reference?

Answer:  Offerors should submit Past Performance questionnaires regarding their prime contracts with the Government to the Government customer.  Offerors that provided effort to the Government as a subcontractor would provide Past Performance Questionnaires to the prime contractor for the effort.  In addition to contractor-provided references, the government Past Performance Database and references known to the SEB will be checked as deemed necessary.  

Question 67:  Are the dollar values for the non-labor BOE's in the cost volume and the technical resource volume to be fully burdened through fee or are they unloaded cost?

Answer:  The non-labor resource (NLR) dollars included in the Excel Pricing Model (EPM) cost templates are to show NLR dollars for the indicated cost categories (i.e., materials, equipment, travel, and other direct costs) without applicable burdens or fee.  Separate line items are to be added for burdens applicable to NLR costs, and not included elsewhere in the EPM cost template (i.e., G&A expense).  Applicable fee is to be included on the fee line of the EPM cost template.

The Basis of Estimate (BOE) portion of the cost proposal (i.e., Section 13) is to identify the required NLR dollars without applicable burdens or fee.

The NLR dollars included in the Technical Resources Templates (TRT) are to show NLR dollars for the indicated cost categories (i.e., materials, equipment, travel, and other direct costs) without applicable burdens or fee.  Applicable NLR burden and fee dollars would be included only on the "Total estimated cost and fee ($)" line of the TRT.

Question 68:  Section L states that SC1 - Small Disadvantaged Business (SDB) Participation and Small Business Subcontracting Plan shall be part of the Management Volume.  We have a Government approved Master Subcontracting Plan and format, which is a separate stand alone document.  Is it NASA’s intent that this document will be included in the page limited section of the Management Volume, or can we just refer to relevant portions of this plan in the Management Volume, and include the actual plan in the Management Volume Appendix?

Answer:  The discussion of the Offeror’s approach should be provided as part of the proposal in Volume III Management and will be subject to the page count limitations.  The Small Business Subcontracting Plan submitted with the proposal shall be incorporated into the model contract in attachment J-9 and will become part of the contract.    
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